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Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors
OAO LUKOIL

We have audited the accompanying consolidated diabstatements of OAO LUKOIL and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated li@asheets as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, and the consolidated statements of compraeeimeome, stockholders’ equity and cash
flows for 2013, 2012 and 2011, and the relatedstiighe consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidatethfcial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation amnd gresentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with U.S. gdiyesccepted accounting principles; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintemaoic internal control relevant to the
preparation of consolidated financial statementst tre free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the presentation of these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits. We caadunur audits in accordance with Russian
Federal Auditing Standards and auditing standaese@lly accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we comply wethical requirements and plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurahoatavhether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaudit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statesiefhe procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due remudf or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal comi®@lant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statémemnorder to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for theppse of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Aodingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness ajuatting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, asawelaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to express an
opinion on the fair presentation of these constdiddinancial statements.

Audited entity: Open Joint Stock Company “Oil company “LUKOIL" Independent auditor: ZAO KPMG, a company incorporated under the
Laws of the Russian Federation, a part of the KPMG Europe LLP group,
and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member

firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG
International”), a Swiss entity.

Registered by Moscow Registration Chamber on 22 of April 1993,
Registration No. 024020.

Entered in the Unified State Register of Legal Entities on 17 July Registered by the Moscow Registration Chamber on 25 May 1992
2002 by Department of the Ministry of Taxes and Duties, Registration Reg:stration Klo 011 585W 9 : Y ’

No. 1027700035769, Certificate series 77 No 007892347

Included in the Unified State Register of Legal Entities on 13 August
2002 by the Moscow Inter-Regional Tax Inspectorate No.39 of the
Ministry for Taxes and Duties of the Russian Federation, Registration
No. 1027700125628, Certificate series 77 No. 005721432.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetsereferred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of OAO KQ@IL and its subsidiaries as of

December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of dpeirations and their cash flows for 2013,
2012 and 2011 in accordance with U.S. generallgpted accounting principles.

Other Matter

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles meqthat the Supplementary Information on
Oil and Gas Exploration and Production Activities pages 40 through 46 be presented to
supplement the basic consolidated financial statésn&uch information, although not a part of
the basic consolidated financial statements, isiired by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential partirmdintcial reporting for placing the basic

consolidated financial statements in an appropoagrational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to tbguired supplementary information in

accordance with auditing standards generally aedept the United States of America, which

consisted of inquiries of management about the odsthof preparing the information and

comparing the information for consistency with mgermaent's responses to our inquiries, the
basic consolidated financial statements, and dthewledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic consolidated financial statements. Wendb express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limitedgolures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any asser.

February 17, 2014

Moscow, Russian Federation



OAO LUKOIL

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012

(Millions of US dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Note 2013 2012
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,712 2,914
Short-term investments 363 286
Accounts receivable, r 5 7,943 8,667
Inventories 6 8,801 8,098
Prepaid taxes and other expenses 3,801 3,541
Other current assets 775 767
Total current assets 23,395 24,273
Investments 7 4,255 4,124
Property, plant and equipment 8,9 78,466 66,883
Deferred income tax assets 13 684 569
Goodwill and other intangible assets 10 1,300 1,964
Other non-current assets 1,339 1,148
Total assets 109,439 98,961
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 7,335 7,263
Short-term borrowings and current portion of loegat debt 11 1,338 658
Taxes payable 2,501 2,802
Other current liabilities 1,923 1,730
Total current liabilities 13,097 12,453
Long-term debt 12,16 9,483 5,963
Deferred income tax liabilities 13 4,724 3,651
Asset retirement obligations 8 2,764 2,195
Other long-term liabilities 516 511
Total liabilities 30,584 24,773
Equity 15
OAO LUKOIL stockholders’ equity
Common stock 15 15
Treasury stock, at cost (5,189) (5,189)
Equity-linked notes (2,500) (2,500)
Additional paid-in capital 4,574 4,734
Retained earnings 81,733 76,216
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (55) (69)
Total OAO LUKOIL stockholders’ equity 78,578 73,207
Non-controlling interests 277 981
Total equity 78,855 74,188
Total liabilities and equity 109,439 98,961

QL
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President of OAO fgKOIL
Alekperov V.Y.

Vice-president — Chief acatant of OAO LUKOIL

Khoba L.N.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.



OAO LUKOIL

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201
(Millions of US dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Note 2013 2012 2011

Revenues
Sales (including excise and export tariffs) 21 152, 139,171 133,650
Costs and other deductions
Operating expenses (10,086) (9,359) (9,055)
Cost of purchased crude oil, gas and products 28%,9 (64,148) (59,694)
Transportation expenses (6,290) (6,171) (6,121)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3,84 (3,755) (3,822)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization (5,756) (4,832) (4,473)
Taxes other than income taxes 13 (13,803) (13,666) (12,918)
Excise and export tariffs (22,334) (22,836) (22,217)
Exploration expenses (602) (364) (532)
(Loss) gain on disposals and impairments of assets (2,561) 30 (1,663)
Income from operating activities 10,247 14,070 1%H5
Interest expense (488) (538) (694)
Interest and dividend income 239 257 211
Equity share in income of affiliates 7 575 518 690
Currency translation loss (443) (512) (301)
Other non-operating income (expense) 328 (72) 58
Income before income taxes 10,458 13,723 13,119
Current income taxes (2,051) (2,738) (2,678)
Deferred income taxes (780) (60) (615)
Total income tax expense 13 (2,831) (2,798) (3,293)
Net income 7,627 10,925 9,826
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests 205 79 531
Net income attributable to OAO LUKOIL 7,832 11,004 10,357
Earnings per share of common stock attributable to
OAO LUKOIL (US dollars): 15

Basic 10.38 14.47 13.30

Diluted 10.18 14.17 13.04
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Defined benefit pension plan:

Prior service cost arising during the period 8 - 22

Actuarial gain (loss) 6 (15) 9)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 14 (15) 13
Comprehensive income 7,641 10,910 9,839
Comprehensive loss attributable to non-controllimgriests 205 79 531
Comprehensive income attributable to OAO LUKOIL 7,846 10,989 10,370

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.



OAO LUKOIL

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201
(Millions of US dollars, unless otherwise noted

2013 2012 2011
Stockholders’ Comprehen- Stockholders’ Comprehen- Stockholders’ Comprehen-
equity  sive income equity  sive income equity  sive income
Common stock
Balance as of January 1 15 15 15
Balance as of December 31 15 15 15
Treasury stock
Balance as of January 1 (5,189) (4,081) (3,683)
Stock purchased - (128) (398)
Equity-linked notes conversion - (980) -
Balance as of December 31 (5,189) (5,189) (4,081)
Equity-linked notes
Balance as of January 1 (2,500) (980) (980)
Equity-linked notes purchased - (2,500) -
Equity-linked notes conversion - 980 -
Balance as of December 31 (2,500) (2,500) (980)
Additional paid-in capital
Balance as of January 1 4,734 4,798 4,700
Effect of stock compensation plan - (197) 98
Changes in non-controlling interests (160) 133 -
Balance as of December 31 4,574 4,734 4,798
Retained earnings
Balance as of January 1 76,216 67,940 59,212
Net income 7,832 7,832 11,004 11,004 10,357 10,357
Dividends on common stock (2,315) (2,728) (1,629)
Balance as of December 31 81,733 76,216 67,940
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Balance as of January 1 (69) (54) (67)
Pension benefits:
Prior service cost 8 8 - - 22 22
Actuarial gain (loss) 6 6 (15) (15) (9) (9)
Balance as of December 31 (55) (69) (54)
Total comprehensive income 7,846 10,989 10,370
Total OAO LUKOIL stockholders’ equity
as of December 31 78,578 73,207 67,638
Non-controlling interests
Balance as of January 1 981 (172) 411
Net loss attributable to
non-controlling interests (205) (79) (531)
Changes in non-controlling interests (499) 1,232 (52)
Balance as of December 31 277 981 (172)
Total equity as of December 31 78,855 74,188 67,466

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.



OAO LUKOIL

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201
(Millions of US dollars, unless otherwise noted

Share activity

2013 2012 2011
(thousands of shares) (thousands of shares) (thousands of shares)

Common stock, issued

Balance as of January 1 850,563 850,563 850,563
Balance as of December 31 850,563 850,563 850,563
Treasury stock

Balance as of January 1 (95,697) (76,101) (69,208)

Purchase of treasury stock - (2,096) (6,893)

Equity-linked notes conversion - (17,500) -
Balance as of December 31 (95,697) (95,697) (76,101)

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.



OAO LUKOIL
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201
(Millions of US dollars)

Note 2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income attributable to OAO LUKOIL 7,832 11,004 10,357
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 5,756 32,8 4,473
Equity share in income of affiliates, net of dividks received (20) 102 185
Dry hole write-offs 314 127 417
Loss (gain) on disposals and impairments of assets 2,561 (30) 1,663
Deferred income taxes 780 60 615
Non-cash currency translation (gain) loss (207) 293 (214)
Non-cash investing activities (5) (18) (6)
All other items — net 501 334 (210)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable 816 641 (758)
Inventories (1,105) (126) (1,420)
Accounts payable (366) 820 648
Taxes payable (313) 468 177
Other current assets and liabilities (95) 490 (413)
Net cash provided by operating activities 16,449 81997 15,514
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of licenses (849) (921) (25)
Capital expenditures (14,957) (11,647) (8,249)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 99 412 156
Purchases of investments (559) (453) (101)
Proceeds from sale of investments 315 252 79
Sale of subsidiaries and equity method affiliatest,of cash
disposed 97 27 227
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and equity methodliatés, net of
cash acquired (2,785) (886) (1,100)
Net cash used in investing activities (18,639) (13,216) (9,013)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net movements of short-term borrowings 25 (32) 3[63
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 5,049 597 1
Principal repayments of long-term debt (949) (1,831) (1,372)
Dividends paid on Company common stock (2,383) (2,800) (1,714)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest stocldas (126) (113) (116)
Financing received from non-controlling interestcktholders 2 2 3
Purchases of Company'’s stock - (128) (398)
Purchases of equity-linked notes - (740) (1,760)
Purchases of non-controlling interest (589) (635) (34)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,029 (5,680) (6,023)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvatnts (41) 60 (93)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivakent (1,202) 161 385
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 42,91 2,753 2,368
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3 1,712 2,914 2,753
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Interest paid 405 497 683
Income taxes paid 2,452 1,585 2,508

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.



OAO LUKOIL
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of US dollars, except as indicated)

Note 1. Organization and environment

The primary activities of OAO LUKOIL (the “Companyand its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
oil exploration, production, refining, marketingdadistribution. The Company is the ultimate paremtity
of this vertically integrated group of companies.

The Group was established in accordance with ReaSal Decree 1403, issued on November 17, 1992.
Under this decree, on April 5, 1993, the Governnadrthe Russian Federation transferred to the Compa
51% of the voting shares of fifteen enterprisesdé&inGovernment Resolution 861 issued on September 1
1995, a further nine enterprises were transferoethé Group during 1995. Since 1995, the Group has
carried out a share exchange program to increasshidreholding in each of the twenty-four founding
subsidiaries to 100%.

From formation, the Group has expanded substantiabugh consolidation of its interests, acquisitpf
new companies and establishment of new businesses.

Business and economic environment

The accompanying consolidated financial statemegitsct management’'s assessment of the impacteof th
business environment in the countries in which @reup operates on the operations and the financial
position of the Group. The future business envirents may differ from management’s assessment.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have bemaped by the Company in accordance with accogintin
principles generally accepted in the United Stafemerica (“US GAAP”).

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include fthencial position and results of the Company,
controlled subsidiaries of which the Company disectr indirectly owns more than 50% of the voting
interest, unless non-controlling stockholders haubstantive participating rights, and variable rese
entities where the Group is determined to be themagy beneficiary. Other significant investments in
companies of which the Company directly or indineciwns between 20% and 50% of the voting interest
and over which it exercises significant influenag bot control, are accounted for using the equigthod

of accounting. Investments in companies of whiah @ompany directly or indirectly owns more than 50%
of the voting interest but where non-controllingcitholders have substantive participating rights aso
accounted for using the equity method of accountuvdivided interests in oil and gas joint ventuaes
accounted for using the proportionate consolidat@thod. Investments in other companies are redaatle
cost. Equity investments and investments in othempanies are included in “Investments” in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiwith US GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repatedunts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effifancial statements, and the reported amountsveihues
and expenses during the reporting period. Sigmifidgeems subject to such estimates and assumptions
include the carrying value of oil and gas propertand other property, plant and equipment, goodwill
impairment assessment, asset retirement obligatide$erred income taxes, valuation of financial
instruments, and obligations related to employaeefies. Eventual actual amounts could differ frdroge
estimates.



OAO LUKOIL
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of US dollars, except as indicated)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policieécontinued)
Revenues

Revenues are recognized when title passes to cestaah which point the risks and rewards of owriprsh
are assumed by the customer and the price is bxettterminable. Revenues include excise on petmole
products’ sales and duties on export sales of coildend petroleum products.

Revenues from non-cash sales are recognized &ithalue of the crude oil and petroleum produstitl.
Foreign currency translation

The Company maintains its accounting records irsRnsrubles. The Company’s functional currencyés t
US dollar and the Group’s reporting currency isltfg&dollar.

For the majority of operations in the Russian Fatien and outside the Russian Federation, the W&rds

the functional currency. Where the US dollar isfilmectional currency, monetary assets and liabgithave
been translated into US dollars at the rate priexpiéit each balance sheet date. Non-monetary censéts
liabilities have been translated into US dollardiatorical rates. Revenues, expenses and cask flawe
been translated into US dollars at rates which @pprate actual rates at the date of the transaction
Translation differences resulting from the usehafse rates are included in profit or loss.

For certain other operations, where the US doBanadt the functional currency and the economy is no
highly inflationary, assets and liabilities arenskated into US dollars at period-end exchangesratel
revenues and expenses are translated at averapangecrates for the period. Resulting translation
adjustments are reflected as a separate compohetttes comprehensive income.

In all cases, foreign currency transaction gairgslaases are included in profit or loss.

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, exchartgs od 32.73, 30.37 and 32.20 Russian rubles to the
US dollar, respectively, have been used for traiosigpurposes.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly ligoigestments with an original maturity of three rti@nor
less.

Cash with restrictions on immediate use

Cash funds for which restrictions on immediate exdst are accounted for within other non-curressess
Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at their transacmounts less provisions for doubtful debts. Brons
for doubtful debts are recorded to the extent tinarte is a likelihood that any of the amounts diknet be
collected. Non-current receivables are discountedhe present value of expected cash flows in éutur
periods using the original discount rate.

Inventories

The cost of finished goods and purchased prodgcteiermined using the first-in, first-out cost hoat
(FIFO). The cost of all other inventory categoliiedetermined using the “average cost” method.

Investments
Debt and equity securities are classified into ohéhree categories: trading, available-for-sateheld-to-

maturity.
10



OAO LUKOIL
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of US dollars, except as indicated)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policieécontinued)

Trading securities are bought and held principétlly the purpose of selling in the near term. Held-t
maturity securities are those securities in whicBraup company has the ability and intent to haitilu
maturity. All securities not included in trading loeld-to-maturity are classified as available-fates

Trading and available-for-sale securities are medrat fair value. Held-to-maturity securities ezeorded

at cost, adjusted for the amortization or accretibpremiums or discounts. Unrealized holding gaind
losses on trading securities are included in prafitoss. Unrealized holding gains and losses,ofi¢he
related tax effect, on available-for-sale secwsitiare reported as a separate component of other
comprehensive income until realized. Realized gaimlosses from the sale of available-for-salerites

are determined on a specific identification baBisidends and interest income are recognized itfitpoo

loss when earned.

A permanent decline in the market value of anylafbég-for-sale or held-to-maturity security beloastis
accounted for as a reduction in the carrying amoufdir value. The impairment is charged to profifoss
and a new cost base for the security is establidhemiums and discounts are amortized or acciated
the life of the related held-to-maturity or avaikdfor-sale security as an adjustment to yield gigime
effective interest method and such amortizationaawtetion is recorded in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Oil and gas properties are accounted for usingticeessful efforts method of accounting whereby@rty
acquisitions, successful exploratory wells, all@lepment costs (including development dry holes thed
Group’s share of operators’ expenses during theldpment stage of production sharing and risk servi
contracts), and support equipment and facilitiee aapitalized. Unsuccessful exploratory wells are
expensed when a well is determined to be non-ptoducOther exploratory expenditures, including
geological and geophysical costs are expensecasad.

The Group continues to capitalize costs of exptwyatvells and exploratory-type stratigraphic weths
more than one year after the completion of drillihthe well has found a sufficient quantity of eeges to
justify its completion as a producing well and empany is making sufficient progress towards a&$8gs
the reserves and the economic and operating \alofithe project. If these conditions are not roetf
information that raises substantial doubt about ¢lsenomic or operational viability of the projest i
obtained, the well would be assumed impaired, gndasts, net of any salvage value, would be cllaige
expense.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization of capital costs of oil and gas properties is calculatgdg the
unit-of-production method based upon proved resefee the cost of property acquisitions and proved
developed reserves for exploration and developicests.

Production and related overhead costs are expessedurred.

Depreciation of assets not directly associated witlproduction is calculated on a straight-linesigaover
the economic lives of such assets, estimated to tie following ranges:

Buildings and constructions 5 — 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5 — 20 years

In addition to production assets, certain Group ganies also maintain and construct social assetthéo
use of local communities. Such assets are camthlonly to the extent that they are expected toltres
future economic benefits to the Group. If capitdizthey are depreciated over their estimated evmno
lives.

Significant unproved properties are assessed fgraimment individually on a regular basis and any
estimated impairment is charged to expense.
11



OAO LUKOIL
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of US dollars, except as indicated)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policieécontinued)
Asset retirement obligations

The Group records the fair value of liabilitiesateld to its legal obligations to abandon, dismaotie
otherwise retire tangible long-lived assets in pleeiod in which the liability is incurred. A corgganding
increase in the carrying amount of the related Joreyl asset is also recorded. Subsequently, &gty is
accreted for the passage of time and the relatest asdepreciated using the unit-of-productionhoet

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of guieed entity over the fair value of net assetauaredgl. It

is assigned to reporting units as of the acquisitiate. Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested fo
impairment at least on an annual basis and betampunal tests if an event occurs or circumstancasgg
that would more likely than not reduce the fairualof a reporting unit below its carrying amouniheT
impairment test requires assessing qualitativeofaand then, if it is necessary, estimating tlievidue of

a reporting unit and comparing it with its carryiagount, including goodwill assigned to the repaytinit.

If the estimated fair value of the reporting usitéss than its net carrying amount, including ggbdthen
the goodwill is written down to its implied fair hee.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives tested for impairment at least annually. Intangddeets that
have limited useful lives are amortized on a shrilipe basis over the shorter of their usefulegdl lives.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets, such as oil and gas propenigm( than unproved properties), other propergnipland
equipment, and purchased intangibles subject tataration, are assessed for impairment wheneventsve
or changes in circumstances indicate that the icyrgmount of an asset group may not be recoverable
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isured by a comparison of the carrying amount cdsset
group to the estimated undiscounted future castsflexpected to be generated by that group. If éneying
amount of an asset group exceeds its estimatedamdited future cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognized by writing down the carrying amount hie estimated fair value of the asset group, gelgeral
determined as discounted future net cash flowsetasto be disposed of are separately presenteukin t
balance sheet and reported at the lower of thejingramount or fair value less costs to sell, arelreo
longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities disposed group classified as held for sale arsemted
separately in the appropriate asset and liabiéttiens of the balance sheet.

Income taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are geized in respect of the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between th@ying amounts of existing assets and liabilifi@sthe
purposes of the consolidated financial statememdstlaeir respective tax bases and in respect afatipg

loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred incaaeassets and liabilities are measured using eddak
rates expected to apply to taxable income in tlagsy which those temporary differences are exketd
reverse and the assets be recovered and liabitgdked. The effect on deferred income tax assets
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognimegrofit or loss in the reporting period which indes the
enactment date.

The ultimate realization of deferred income taxetsss dependent upon the generation of futurebtaxa
income in the reporting periods in which the oraing expenditure becomes deductible. In asseskang
realizability of deferred income tax assets, managd considers whether it is more likely than matt tthe
deferred income tax assets will be realized. Inintathis assessment, management considers theuetied
reversal of deferred income tax liabilities, progetfuture taxable income, and tax planning stiateg

12



OAO LUKOIL
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of US dollars, except as indicated)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policieécontinued)

An income tax position is recognized only if thecartain position is more likely than not of being&ined
upon examination, based on its technical meritsed®dgnized income tax position is measured ataigebt
amount that is greater than 50% likely of beinglized. Changes in recognition or measurement are
reflected in the period in which the change in juégt occurs. The Company records interest and tiemnal
relating to income tax in income tax expense.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings from third parties @picconvertible notes) are initially recorded & #alue of
net proceeds received. Any difference between éteroceeds and the redemption value is amortized a
constant rate over the term of the borrowing. Aization is included in profit or loss and the camgy
amounts are adjusted as amortization accumulates.

For borrowings from related parties (except conlbrtnotes) issued with an interest rate lower ttien
market interest rate, the Group determines boolkievalsing a market interest rate at the moment the
borrowing is made. The resulting difference is edied to additional paid-in capital and is amodiz¢ a
constant rate over the term of the borrowings. Amsation is included in profit or loss each per@ad the
carrying amounts are adjusted as amortization aclaies.

For convertible notes issued with a cash converspiion, the Group allocates the proceeds fromeisse
between a liability component and an equity compan&he Group records the equity component at an
amount equal to the difference between the procemmdsved and the fair value of the liability compat,
measured as the fair value of a similar liabilityatt does not have an associated equity componéet. T
Group recognizes the interest cost in subsequeitidseat its borrowing rate for non-convertible deb

If borrowings are repurchased or settled beforeunigf any difference between the amount paid dred t
carrying amount is recognized in profit or losshe period in which the repurchase or settlemeotisc

Pension benefits

The expected costs in respect of pension obligat@nGroup companies are determined by management
based on the amount of pension obligations forpitevious financial year calculated by an independen
actuary. Obligations in respect of each employeeaacrued over the periods during which the emgoye
renders service in the Group.

Treasury stock

Purchases by Group companies of the Company’samastg stock are recorded at cost and classified as
treasury stock within Stockholders’ equity. Shaskewn as Authorized and Issued include treasumgksto
Shares shown as Outstanding do not include treasocy.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing ineome available for distribution to common
stockholders of the Company by the weighted-averagmber of shares of common stock outstanding
during the reporting period. A calculation is cadriout to establish if there is potential dilutionearnings
per share if convertible securities were to be eod into shares of common stock or contractssad
shares of common stock were to be exercised. Ketli® such dilution, diluted earnings per share is
presented.

Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the balance tstie&, which may result in losses to the Grouptbet
impact of which will only be resolved when one asma future events occur or fail to occur.
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OAO LUKOIL
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of US dollars, except as indicated)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policieécontinued)

If a Group company’s assessment of a contingerdigates that it is probable that a material loss theen
incurred and the amount of the liability can benested, then the estimated liability is accrued andrged
to profit or loss. If the assessment indicates #ghpotentially material loss is not probable, Isutdasonably
possible, or is probable, but cannot be reasonesiiynated, then the nature of the contingent ligbil
together with an estimate of the range of posddss, is disclosed in the notes to the consolidéiteshcial
statements. Loss contingencies considered rematdated to unasserted claims are generally notadied
unless they involve guarantees, in which case &lgre of the guarantee is disclosed.

Environmental expenditures

Estimated losses from environmental remediationigabbns are generally recognized no later than
completion of remedial feasibility studies. Grougmpanies accrue for losses associated with enveatah
remediation obligations when such losses are pielminl reasonably estimable. Such accruals arstadju
as further information becomes available or cirdamses change. Costs of expected future expenslitore
environmental remediation obligations are not disted to their present value.

Use of derivative instruments

The Group’s derivative activity is limited to cdrtgpetroleum products’ marketing and trading operest
and hedging of commodity price risks. Currenthstactivity involves the use of futures and swapdracts
together with purchase and sale contracts thatifgued derivative instruments. The Group accouots f
these activities under the mark-to-market methaglolo which the derivatives are revalued each acting
period. Resulting realized and unrealized gaindosses are presented in profit or loss on a ne.bas
Unrealized gains and losses are carried as ags@bibities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share-based payments

The Group accounts for liability classified shaeséd payment awards to employees at fair valuéen t
grant date and as of each reporting date. Expergeecognized over the vesting period. Equitysifes]
share-based payment awards to employees are valldant value on the grant date and expensed twer t
vesting period.

Comparative amounts
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassifiambnform with the current period’s presentation.

Changes in accounting policy

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013*®dmprehensive Income (Topic 220that requires

an entity to provide information about the amourgslassified out of accumulated other comprehensive
income by component. An entity is required to pneéseither on the face of the statement wherenwtme

is presented or in the notes, significant amoustkassified out of accumulated other compreheriav@me

by the respective line items of net income but dhtite amount reclassified is required under USABPAO

be reclassified to net income in its entirety ie #ame reporting period. ASU No. 2013-02 is effecfor
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2002e Group adopted the requirements of ASU
No. 2013-02 starting from the first quarter of 20T8is adoption did not have a material impact lo@ t
Group’s results of operations, financial positiagrcash flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of US dollars, except as indicated)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policieécontinued)

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013®dlance Sheet (Topic 20). Clarifying the Scope of
Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and LiabilitieBhis ASU clarifies that scope of ASU No. 2011-11
“Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilitieapplies to derivatives accounted for in accordance
with Topic 815“Derivatives and Hedging,”including derivatives, repurchase agreements awerse
repurchase agreements, and securities borrowingeautities lending transactions that are eithisetin
accordance with Section 210-20-45 or Section 8188.(Mr subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement. The purpose & A8. 2013-01 and ASU No. 2011-11 is to require
entities to disclose information about offsettingdarelated arrangements to enable users of itsidiah
statements to understand the effect of those agraegts on its financial position. The Group adoytex!
requirements of ASU No. 2013-01 and ASU No. 2011stdrting from the first quarter of 2013. This
adoption did not have a material impact on the @®uesults of operations, financial position oslta
flows and did not require additional disclosures.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-Hresentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a
Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists,Which
clarifies Topic 740 of the Codification. This ASthtes that an unrecognized tax benefit, or a poxican
unrecognized tax benefit, should be presented anfittancial statements as a reduction to a defamed
asset for a net operating loss carryforward, alairéx loss, or a tax credit carryforward. ASU 149613-11

is effective for fiscal years, and interim periatishin those years, beginning after December 1332@nd
should be applied prospectively. The Group is eatithg the effect of the adoption of ASU No. 2013att
does not expect any material impact on its regidltperations, financial position or cash flows.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-F®reign Currency Matters (Topic 830 that requires
entities to apply the guidance in Subtopic 830-@0efease any related cumulative translation aajest
into net income when a reporting entity ceasesateeHinancial interest in a subsidiary or groupas$ets
that is a nonprofit activity or a business withirfaaeign entity. The cumulative translation adjustin
should be released into net income only if the saldransfer results in the complete or substdmgtial
complete liquidation of the foreign entity in whidime subsidiary or group of assets had resided.
Additionally, the amendments in this ASU clarifyatithe sale of an investment in a foreign entigiudes
both events that result in the loss of a contrglfimancial interest in a foreign entity and evethigt result

in an acquirer obtaining control of an acquireenimich it held an equity interest immediately befthe
acquisition date (sometimes also referred to a®@ acquisition). Accordingly, the cumulative triati®n
adjustment should be released into net income wmamurrence of those events. ASU No. 2013-05 is
effective for annual reporting periods beginningeaDecember 15, 2013, and interim periods withivse
annual periods, and should be applied prospectivélg Group is evaluating the effect of the adoptd
ASU No. 2013-05 and does not expect any materiphonhon its results of operations, financial positor
cash flows.

Note 3.Cash and cash equivalents

As of December As of December

31,2013 31,2012
Cash held in Russian rubles 260 571
Cash held in US dollars 1,120 1,816
Cash held in other currencies 241 403
Cash held in related party banks in Russian rubles 78 117
Cash held in related party banks in other currencies 13 7
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,712 2,914
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of US dollars, except as indicated)

Note 4.Non-cash transactions

The consolidated statement of cash flows excludesffect of non-cash transactions, which are dssdr
in the following table:

Year ended Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Non-cash investing activity 5 18 6
Total non-cash transactions 5 18 6

The following table shows the effect of non-castmsactions on investing activity:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Net cash used in investing activity 18,639 13,216 9,013
Non-cash investing activity 5 18 6
Total investing activity 18,644 13,234 9,019

Note 5.Accounts receivable, net

As of December As of December

31, 2013 31, 2012
Trade accounts receivaklileet of provisions of $217 million and $247 mitiias of December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively) 6,030 6,431
Current VAT and excise recoverable 1,518 1,862
Other current accounts receivalgiet of provisions of $53 million and $57 millios af December
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) 395 374
Total accounts receivable, net 7,943 8,667
Note 6.Inventories
As of December As of December
31, 2013 31, 2012
Crude oil and petroleum products 7,461 6,765
Materials for extraction and drilling 411 387
Materials and supplies for refining 110 93
Other goods, materials and supplies 819 853
Total inventories 8,801 8,098

Note 7.lnvestments

As of December

As of December

31, 2013 31, 2012
Investments in equity method affiliates and joiahtures 2,872 2,794
Long-term loans to equity method affiliates andhfoientures 1,369 1,312
Other long-term investments 14 18
Total long-term investments 4,255 4,124
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Note 7. Investments (continued)

Investments in equity method affiliates and corpoegoint ventures

The summarized financial information below is irspect of equity method affiliates and corporatetjoi
ventures. The companies are primarily engaged udecroil exploration, production, marketing and
distribution operations in the Russian Federat@ngde oil production and marketing in Kazakhstamd a

refining operations in Europe.

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Group’s Group’s Group’s
Total share Total share Total share
Revenues 29,821 3,011 29,618 4,160 32,770 4,777
Income before income taxes 13,572 848 13,617 945 ,8323 1,005
Less income taxes (4,414) (273) (5,387) (427) (4,241) (315)
Net income 9,158 575 8,230 518 9,591 690

As of December 31, 2013

As of December 31, 2012

Group’s Group’s
Total Share Total share

Current assets 6,352 924 6,399 983
Property, plant and equipment 21,105 4,260 18,738 4,015
Other non-current assets 572 169 523 167

Total assets 28,029 5,353 25,660 5,165
Short-term debt 1,241 334 1,182 277
Other current liabilities 3,525 454 3,409 496
Long-term debt 7,949 1,409 7,717 1,256
Other non-current liabilities 1,574 284 1,406 342
Net assets 13,740 2,872 11,946 2,794

In April 2011, the Company and OAO ANK Bashneftr@d an agreement to establish a joint venture@nd t
develop two oil fields named after R.Trebs and #faV; located in the Nenets Autonomous District of
Russia. According to the agreement, the minerditsidor the development of the fields were re-isisbg
OAO ANK Bashneft in favor of its 100% subsidiary O@ashneft-Polus. In December 2011, the Company
acquired 25.1% of OOO Bashneft-Polus for $153 omlliand OOO Bashneft-Polus acquired 29 exploration
wells located on these fields from a Group comptmy$60 million. The parties agreed to transpott oi
extracted from the fields via the Group’s transation infrastructure and to consider the explaitatof
certain other nearby infrastructure owned by theu@r In May 2012, state authorities cancelled tigeoto
transfer the mineral rights for the developmenthef fields named after R.Trebs and A.Titov to thiat]
venture and the license was returned to OAO ANKhBa#i. Management does not believe that this matter
will have a material adverse effect on the Groujancial condition. The Company and OAO ANK
Bashneft are continuing cooperation within the @cbjand are carrying out actions for re-issuancthef
mineral rights by the state authorities in favoOd8dO Bashneft-Polus.
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Note 8.Property, plant and equipment and asset retiremenobligations

At cost Net
As of December As of December As of December As of December
31,2013 31,2012 31,2013 31,2012
Exploration and Production:
Russia 72,944 61,541 47,957 39,391
International 12,770 9,700 10,052 7,487
Total 85,714 71,241 58,009 46,878
Refining, Marketing, Distribution and Chemicals:
Russia 14,684 13,182 8,631 7,841
International 10,577 10,297 7,274 7,375
Total 25,261 23,479 15,905 15,216
Power generation and other:
Russia 5,655 5,621 4,285 4,501
International 411 429 267 288
Total 6,066 6,050 4,552 4,789
Total property, plant and equipment 117,041 100,770 78,466 66,883

The Company performs a regular annual impairmesttakits assets. The test is based on geologiodkia
and development programs, which are revised omalaebasis, at least annually. The fair valueestdd
assets is determined using the present value ofxpected cash flows. Fair value measurements model
used in the impairment tests were Level 3 (unolad#evinputs) fair value measurements.

As a result of the test, during the year ended Bee 31, 2013, the Company recognized an impairment
loss for its exploration and production assetshia amount of $942, including $510 million relatedthe
Yuzhnoye Khylchuyu oil field in the Timan-Pechoegion of the Russian Federation, due to a revisfon
geological models.

An impairment loss of $178 million was recognizadhe international refining, marketing and dissitibn
segment due to unfavorable market conditions.

The Company recognized an impairment loss for asge®OO Karpatnaftochim, a petrochemical plant in
Ukraine, in the amount of $411 million due to urdeable economic conditions.

The Company also recognized an impairment lossaksets of OOO LUKOIL-Ecoenergo, a power
generating company in European Russia, in the amotir$270 million due to unfavorable market
conditions in the energy sector in Southern Russia.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynmognized an impairment loss for exploration and
production assets on the Yuzhnoye Khylchuyu oildfimm the amount of $1,175 million, as well as an
impairment loss of $175 million for assets relatedhe international refining, marketing and distition
segment.

The following table sets out values of propertyantl and equipment measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis in periods subsequent to théiai recognition:

Level 3
Fair value fair value measurements Before-tax loss

Year ended December 31, 2013

Property, plant and equipment 374 374 1,801
Year ended December 31, 2012

Property, plant and equipment - - -
Year ended December 31, 2011

Property, plant and equipment 1,195 1,195 1,350
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Note 8. Property, plant and equipment and asset reement obligations (continued)

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the asset reginerobligations amounted to $2,769 million and

$2,200 million, respectively, of which $5 millionas included in “Other current liabilities” in the

consolidated balance sheets as of each balancedsttee

During 2013 and 2012, asset retirement obligatatvaged as follows:

2013 2012
Asset retirement obligations as of January 1 2,200 2,126
Accretion expense 181 172
New obligations 814 147
Changes in estimates of existing obligations (270) (263)
Spending on existing obligations (4) (5)
Property dispositions (2) (10)
Foreign currency translation and other adjustments (150) 33
Asset retirement obligations as of December 31 2,769 2,200

The asset retirement obligations incurred during3@nd 2012 were Level 3 (unobservable inputs) fair

value measurements.

Note 9.Suspended wells

Net changes in capitalized exploratory suspenddidoasts during 2013, 2012 and 2011 were as follows

2013 2012 2011
Balance as of January 1 524 542 478
Additions pending the determination of proved ressr 62 25 97
Charged to expenses (92) - -
Reclassification to proved properties (24) (43) (33)
Balance as of December 31 470 524 542

Aging of capitalized suspended exploratory welltsagere as follows:

As of December

As of December

As of December

31, 2013 31, 2012 31, 2011
Exploratory well costs capitalized
for a period of one year or less 56 21 78
for two years 11 66 144
for three years 66 133 72
for four years 41 67 82
for five years or more 296 237 166
for a period of greater than one year 414 503 464
Total exploratory well costs capitalized 470 524 542
Number of projects that have exploratory well costs
capitalized for a period greater than one year 7 14
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Note 9. Suspended wells (continued)

Aging of the exploratory wells that have been aljged for more than one year since completionritifreh

as of December 31, 2013:
As of December

Project name (field name) Location 31,2013 Years wells drilled
Block A Saudi Arabia 255 2007-2010
Centralno-Astrakhanskoe European Russia 73 2007-2009
Independence Cote d’lvoire 66 2011
Aral Uzbekistan 9 2010-2012
Yuzho-Volodarskaya ploschad European Russia 5 2012
Dzherskoe European Russia 3 2012
Lyaelskaya ploschad European Russia 3 2007
Total of 7 projects 414

Capitalized exploratory well costs of $255 millitimat are related to two fields in the “Block A” arén
Saudi Arabia are represented by four wells drille@007-2010. The wells were suspended pending fina
assessment of the operational and economic vialafithe project. During 2011, the Group engaged an
international engineering survey company to evaluacompletion options for the wells, to prove the
commercialization potential of the appraisal areml @0 optimize the stimulation technology for its
development. During 2012, the Group and its projesttner, Saudi Arabian Oil Company, agreed the
approach to reserves estimation, products yieltedsas pricing and marketing matters and possiags

of project cost efficiency improvement. During 201l3e Group held a meeting with the representaties
the Ministry of Petroleum and Mineral ResourcesSatidi Arabia. Based on the meeting results, thei@ro
management decided to proceed further with theept@nd commence preparatory works for the fiesjest

of field evaluation.

Capitalized exploratory well costs of $73 millidrat are related to the Centralno-Astrakhanskodiglaksin
the European part of Russia are represented bgxgleratory well. Seismic and geophysical worksyay
as drilling of structural wells are planned on fieéd during 2014-2015 in order to determine thsipon of
future exploratory wells.

Capitalized exploratory well costs of $66 milliomat are related to block “Cl-401” in Cote d’lvoieze
represented by one exploratory well. During 201®% Group, together with other participants, began
appraisal activities. One appraisal well was dililie 2013, and the presence of reserves withirbtbek
and its complex field structure was confirmed. Mgeraent plans to drill a second appraisal well ib420

The Company is evaluating the development planthi®other projects.
Note 10.Goodwill and other intangible assets
The carrying value of goodwill and other intangilslssets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 was as

follows:
As of December As of December

31,2013 31,2012

Amortized intangible assets
Software 382 419
Licenses and other assets 311 276
Goodwill 607 1,269
Total goodwill and other intangible assets 1,300 1,964

All goodwill relates to the refining, marketing amtistribution segment. In December 2013, the Group
recognized an impairment loss of $646 million rielgtto goodwill on the acquisition of the ISAB neifig
complex due to changes in the economic environnidrdgre were other minor changes in goodwill retatin
to the international refining, marketing and distition segment in the amount of $16 million. Thie Value

of ISAB and other tested assets was determined tispresent value of the expected cash flows.
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Note 11.Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt

As of December As of December

31, 2013 31, 2012
Short-term borrowings from third parties 124 113
Short-term borrowings from related parties 32 13
Current portion of long-term debt 1,182 532
Total short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt 1,338 658

Short-term borrowings from third parties are unseduand include amounts repayable in US dollars of
$66 million and $54 million, amounts repayable wras of $9 million and $11 million and amounts
repayable in other currencies of $49 million and $4illion as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The weighted-average interest ratshamt-term borrowings from third parties was 4.7404
5.75% per annum as of December 31, 2013 and 2683@ectively.

Note 12.Long-term debt

As of December As of December

31, 2013 31, 2012
Long-term loans and borrowings from third partiesiuding loans from banks
in the amount of $2,660 million and $885 millionch®ecember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) 2,662 1,287
7.40% Russian ruble bonds, maturing 2013 - 198
6.375% non-convertible US dollar bonds, maturin§420 899 898
2.625% convertible US dollar bonds, maturing 2015 1,462 1,436
6.356% non-convertible US dollar bonds, maturing20 500 500
3.416% non-convertible US dollar bonds, maturing®0 1,500 -
7.250% non-convertible US dollar bonds, maturingg®0 597 596
6.125% non-convertible US dollar bonds, maturing@0 998 998
6.656% non-convertible US dollar bonds, maturing20 500 500
4.563% non-convertible US dollar bonds, maturing20 1,500 -
Capital lease obligations 47 82
Total long-term debt 10,665 6,495
Current portion of long-term debt (1,182) (532)
Total non-current portion of long-term debt 9,483 5,963

Long-term loans and borrowings

Long-term loans and borrowings from third partiegclide amounts repayable in US dollars of
$2,121 million and $1,037 million, amounts repagabl euros of $521 million and $230 million and
amounts repayable in other currencies of $20 milland $20 million as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. This debt has maturity datesf2014 through 2024. The weighted-average inteagst

on long-term loans and borrowings from third partieas 2.94% and 2.28% per annum as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. A number of long-téwan agreements contain certain financial covenants
which are being met by the Group. Approximately 2dRtotal long-term loans and borrowings from third
parties are secured by export sales and propdatyt @nd equipment.

The Company has an unsecured loan agreement widrb&ik with an outstanding amount of
$1,500 million as of December 31, 2013, maturingto@018. Borrowings under this agreement bear
interest at twelve month LIBOR plus 2.50% per annum

The Company has an unsecured loan agreement with BEnk, a branch of ING-DIBA AG, Societe
Generale, UniCredit Bank Austria AG, UniCredit & p.and BNP Paribas Fortis SA/NV with an
outstanding amount of $337 million as of Decemkr2013, maturing up to 2023. Borrowings under this
agreement bear interest at six month EURIBOR plb@% per annum.
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Note 12. Long-term debt (continued)

A Group company has a secured loan agreement wdtanADevelopment bank, BNP Paribas (Suisse),
Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment bank, Kloeea Development bank and Islamic Development
bank with an outstanding amount of $289 million agfsDecember 31, 2013, maturing up to 2017.
Borrowings under this agreement, depending onrdneche, bear interest at a floating rate of threatm
LIBOR plus 3.00%, three month LIBOR plus 4.50% igefl rate of 6.08% per annum.

A Group company has a secured loan agreement veittk Bf China Limited, Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (London) and Sumitomo Mitsui Banki@gprporation with an outstanding amount of
$100 million as of December 31, 2013, maturinga@@18. Borrowings under this agreement bear istere
at three month LIBOR plus 3.00% per annum.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group has a numbethefr loan agreements with fixed rates with a numbe
of banks and other organizations totaling $5 millismaturing up to 2023. The weighted average istere
rate under these loans was 2.92% per annum.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group has a numbethafr floating rate loan agreements with a numiber o
banks and other organizations totaling $431 millimaturing up to 2024. The weighted average inteete
under these loans was 1.66% per annum.

US dollar convertible bonds

In December 2010, a Group company issued unsecoregrtible bonds totaling $1.5 billion with a caup
yield of 2.625% and maturity in June 2015. The Isowére placed at face value. The bonds are cohieerti
into LUKOIL ADRs (each representing one ordinargghof the Company) and as of December 31, 2013
had a conversion price of $69.39 per ADR. Bondhsld®ve the right to convert the bonds into LUKOIL
ADRs during the period starting from 40 days aftez issue date and ending 6 dealing days before the
maturity date. The issuer has the right to reddenbbnds after December 31, 2013.

US dollar non-convertible bonds

In April 2013, a Group company issued two tranabfeson-convertible bonds totaling $3 billion. Thest
tranche totaling $1.5 billion was placed with a anay of 5 years and a coupon yield of 3.416% peruan.
The second tranche totaling $1.5 billion was plavétth a maturity of 10 years and a coupon yield of
4.563% per annum. All bonds were placed at faceevahd have a half year coupon period.

In November 2010, a Group company issued two tsc non-convertible bonds totaling $1 billion twit
a coupon yield of 6.125% and maturity in 2020. Tih& tranche totaling $800 million was placed airice

of 99.081% of the bond’s face value with a resgltineld to maturity of 6.250%. The second tranche
totaling $200 million was placed at a price of #3®%6 of the bond’s face value with a resulting yigdd
maturity of 5.80%. All bonds have a half year cauperiod.

In November 2009, a Group company issued two tremaif non-convertible bonds totaling $1.5 billion.
The first tranche totaling $900 million with a caupyield of 6.375% per annum was placed with a nitgtu
of 5 years at a price of 99.474% of the bond’s fealee with a resulting yield to maturity of 6.500%he
second tranche totaling $600 million with a coug@ld of 7.250% per annum was placed with a maturit
of 10 years at a price of 99.127% of the bond'® fe&lue with a resulting yield to maturity of 7.3%5All
bonds have a half year coupon period.

In June 2007, a Group company issued non-convertibhds totaling $1 billion. $500 million were piaic
with a maturity of 10 years and a coupon yield &#56% per annum. Another $500 million were placed
with a maturity of 15 years and a coupon yield @56% per annum. All bonds were placed at faceevalu
and have a half year coupon period.
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Note 12. Long-term debt (continued)
Russian ruble bonds

In December 2006, the Company issued 6 million camvertible bonds with a face value of 1,000 Russia
rubles each. The bonds were placed at face valilreannaturity of 7 years and a coupon yield of %4ger
annum. The bonds had a half year coupon periofelcember 2013, the Company redeemed all issued
bonds in accordance with the conditions of the hieade.

Maturities of long-term debt

Annual maturities of total long-term debt duringethext five years, including the portion classifiasl
current, are $1,182 million in 2014, $1,708 million2015, $218 million in 2016, $638 million in 201
$3,090 million in 2018 and $3,829 million thereafte

Note 13.Taxes

The Group is taxable in a number of jurisdictionghim and outside of the Russian Federation andy as
result, is subject to a variety of taxes as esthbll under the statutory provisions of each juctsuh.

The total cost of taxation to the Group is repoitethe consolidated statements of comprehensivenie

as “Total income tax expense” for income taxes;Easise and export tariffs” for excise taxes, expor
tariffs and petroleum products sales taxes andTaxés other than income taxes” for other types of
taxation. In each category taxation is made upueds levied at various rates in different jurisdics.

Operations in the Russian Federation are subjextRederal income tax rate of 2.0% and a regioame
tax rate that varies from 13.5% to 18.0% at therdison of the individual regional administratiofhe
Group’s foreign operations are subject to taxethatax rates applicable to the jurisdictions inchiithey
operate.

As of January 1, 2013 and 2012, and during 20182 2(hd 2011, the Group did not have any unrecogdnize
tax benefits and thus, no interest and penaltiesee to unrecognized tax benefits were accrued.

The Company and its Russian subsidiaries file irectam returns in Russia. With a few exceptionspine
tax returns in Russia are open to examination ByRuissian tax authorities for tax years beginnmng011.
Tax losses may be fully or partially used to offsetable profits in the same company in any oftére
years following the year of loss. Until Januar2@12, there were no provisions in the tax legistabf the
Russian Federation to permit the Group to redugabia profits of a Group company by offsetting tax
losses of another Group company against such grofit

Starting from January 1, 2012, if certain condiicare met, taxpayers are able to pay income tax as
consolidated taxpayers’ group (“CTG”). This allovespayers to offset taxable losses generated lgicer
participants of a CTG against taxable profits dfeotparticipants of the CTG. Certain Group companiet
the legislative requirements and paid income tax @G starting from the first quarter of 2012.

Losses generated by a taxpayer before joining a @E&ot available for offset against taxable psodf
other participants of the CTG. However, if a taxgralgaves a CTG, such losses again become avaitable
offset against future profits generated by the starpayer. The expiration period of the losseisreded
to take account of any time spent within a CTG wtienlosses were unavailable for use.

Domestic and foreign components of income befocenme taxes were:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Domestic 11,387 12,458 12,561
Foreign (929) 1,265 558
Income before income taxes 10,458 13,723 13,119
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Note 13. Taxes (continued)

Domestic and foreign components of income taxeg wer

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Current
Domestic 1,608 2,178 2,159
Foreign 443 560 519
Current income tax expense 2,051 2,738 2,678
Deferred
Domestic 804 131 581
Foreign (24) (71) 34
Deferred income tax expense 780 60 615
Total income tax expense 2,831 2,798 3,293

The following table is a reconciliation of the ambwf income tax expense that would result fromiapg
the Russian combined statutory income tax rateD®6 applicable to the Company to income before ireom
taxes to total income taxes:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Income before income taxes 10,458 13,723 13,119
Notional income tax at the Russian statutory rate ,09P 2,745 2,624
Increase (reduction) in income tax due to:
Non-deductible items, net 900 227 693
Foreign rate differences (67) (60) 169
Domestic regional rate differences (242) (311) (328)
Change in valuation allowance 149 197 135
Total income tax expense 2,831 2,798 3,293
Taxes other than income taxes were:
Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Mineral extraction tax 12,410 12,354 11,594
Social taxes and contributions 640 604 587
Property tax 571 535 573
Other taxes and contributions 182 173 164
Taxes other than income taxes 13,803 13,666 12,918

Deferred income taxes are included in the cons@atibalance sheets as follows:

As of December As of December
31,2013 31, 2012
Other current assets 71 153
Deferred income tax assets — non-current 684 569
Other current liabilities (325) (284)
Deferred income tax liabilities — non-current (4,724) (3,651)
Net deferred income tax liability (4,294) (3,213)
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Note 13. Taxes (continued)

The following table sets out the tax effects oftregpe of temporary differences which give riseléderred
income tax assets and liabilities:

As of December As of December
31, 2013 31, 2012
Accounts receivable 4 5
Long-term liabilities 539 399
Inventories 9 6
Property, plant and equipment 311 344
Accounts payable 4 9
Operating loss carry forwards 1,003 758
Other 128 195
Total gross deferred income tax assets 1,998 1,716
Less valuation allowance (899) (750)
Deferred income tax assets 1,099 966
Property, plant and equipment (4,911) (3,751)
Accounts payable (24) (12)
Accounts receivable 5) (2)
Long-term liabilities (33) (39)
Inventories (107) (103)
Investments (53) (38)
Other (260) (234)
Deferred income tax liabilities (5,393) (4,179)
Net deferred income tax liability (4,294) (3,213)

As a result of acquisitions during 2013 the Groegognized a net deferred tax liability of $466 il

As of December 31, 2013, retained earnings of foresubsidiaries included $19,413 million for which
deferred taxation has not been provided becausktaene of the earnings has been indefinitely porstol
through reinvestment and, as a result, such amametconsidered to be indefinitely invested. Inat
practicable to estimate the amount of additionetsethat might be payable on such undistributediegs.

In accordance with Topic 830Foreign currency matters’of the Codification and Topic 740lncome
Taxe$ of the Codificationdeferred tax assets and liabilities are not reaaghfor the changes in exchange
rate effects resulting from the translation of sactions and balances from the Russian ruble tdJ®e
dollar using historical exchange rates. Also, incadance with Topic 740 of the Codification, noeteéd
tax assets or liabilities are recognized for ttieat$ of the related statutory indexation of préygulant and
equipment.

Based upon the levels of historical taxable incaane projections for future taxable income over the
periods in which the deferred income tax assetsladeictible, management believes it is more likebn
not that Group companies will realize the beneaditshe deductible temporary differences and lossyca
forwards, net of existing valuation allowances BBecember 31, 2013 and 2012.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group had operatisg lcarry forwards of $1,905 million of which
$90 million expire during 2014, $84 million expimuring 2015, $106 million expire during 2016,
$88 million expire during 2017, $58 million expimuring 2018, $57 million expire during 2019,
$57 million expire during 2020, $1 million expireuihg 2021, $1 million expire during 2022,
$1 million expire during 2023, $24 million expirerthg 2036 and $1,338 million have an indefiniterga
forward.
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Note 14.Pension benefits

The Group sponsors a postretirement defined bepefitsion program that covers the majority of the
Group’s employees. One type of pension plan isdaseyears of service, final remuneration levelofas
the end of 2003 and employee gratitude, receivemhglthe period of work. The other type of penspban

is based on the salary. These plans are solelgdathby Group companies. Simultaneously employaes h
the right to receive pension benefits with a pagayment by the Group (up to 4% of the annualrgaté
the employee). Plan assets and pensions payoffsnamaged by a non-state pension fund, LUKOIL-
GARANT. The Group also provides several long-teouia benefits, including lump-sum death-in-service
benefit, in case of disability and upon retirempayments. Also certain payments are received bredet
employees upon reaching a certain old age andidtityal

The Company uses December 31 as the measuremenfoddts post employment and post retirement
benefits program. An independent actuary has asdeke benefit obligations as of December 31, 2048
2012.

The following table provides information about thenefit obligations and plan assets as of DeceBiber
2013 and 2012. The benefit obligations below reprethe projected benefit obligation of the pengitam.

2013 2012
Benefit obligations
Benefit obligations as of January 1 294 260
Effect of exchange rate changes (22) 17
Service cost 18 14
Interest cost 21 19
Plan amendments 5 12
Actuarial loss (12) 18
Benefits paid (40) (45)
Curtailment gain 3) Q)
Other 32 -
Benefit obligations as of December 31 294 294
Plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 120 105
Effect of exchange rate changes 9) 7
Return on plan assets 6 8
Employer contributions 43 45
Benefits paid (40) (45)
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 120 120
Funded status (174) (174)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance shess of December 31,
2013 and 2012
Accrued benefit liabilities included in “Other lostigrm liabilities” (157) (158)
Accrued benefit liabilities included in “Other cant liabilities” a7) (16)

Weighted average assumptions used to determinditellégations as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Discount rate 7.70% 7.10%
Rate of compensation increase 7.12% 7.10%
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Note 14. Pension benefits (continued)

Weighted average assumptions used to determingeniedic benefit costs for the year ended Decer8her
2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Discount rate 7.10% 7.80%
Rate of compensation increase 7.10% 7.30%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.14% 8.63%

Included in accumulated other comprehensive lossfd3ecember 31, 2013 and 2012, are the following
before-tax amounts that have not yet been recogizeet periodic benefit cost:

2013 2012
Prior service cost 51 59
Net loss 15 21
Total costs 66 80

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive lossdutie year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Additional (gain) loss arising during the period (6) 15
Additional prior service cost from plan amendment 4 10
Re-classified prior service cost amortization (12) (10)
Net amount recognized for the period (14) 15

The real returns on bonds and equities are basedhan is observed in the international markets over
extended periods of time. In the calculation of élxpected return on assets no use is made of sharibal
returns LUKOIL-GARANT has achieved.

In addition to the plan assets, LUKOIL-GARANT holdssets in the form of an insurance reserve. The
purpose of this insurance reserve is to satisfisipanobligations should the plan assets not becserft to
meet pension obligations. The Group’s contributit;mthe pension plan are determined without comsige
the assets in the insurance reserve.

The plans are funded on a discretionary basis tfraa solidarity account, which is held in trust fwit
LUKOIL-GARANT. LUKOIL-GARANT does not allocate sepately identifiable assets to the Group or its
other third party clients. All funds of plan assatal other individual pension accounts are managed
pool of investments.

The asset allocation of the investment portfoliam@ned by LUKOIL-GARANT for the Group and its
clients was as follows:

As of December As of December

Type of assets 31,2013 31, 2012
Eurobonds 7% 8%
Russian corporate bonds 25% 4%
Bank deposits 54% 74%
Shares in investment funds 12% 11%
Cash 1% 1%
Other assets 1% 2%
100% 100%
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Note 14. Pension benefits (continued)

The investment strategy employed by LUKOIL-GARANciudes an overall goal to attain a maximum
investment return, while guaranteeing the principatlount invested. The strategy is to invest with a
medium-term perspective while maintaining a levelliguidity through proper allocation of investment

assets. Investment policies include rules andditiaibs to avoid concentrations of investments.

The investment portfolio is primarily comprised iofrfestments: bank deposits and securities withdfixe
yield. The securities with fixed yield include miirhigh yield corporate bonds with low and mediuskr
ratings. Maturities range from one to three years.

Components of net periodic benefit cost were devid:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Service cost 18 14 15
Interest cost 21 19 22
Less expected return on plan assets 9) 9) (10)
Amortization of prior service cost 15 13 17
Curtailment gain (2) - (2)
Total net periodic benefit cost 43 37 42

Total employer contributions for 2014 are expedtete $33 million. An amount of $17 million befotax
is included in other comprehensive income and egpleio be recognized in the net periodic beneft oo
2014.

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture services, as appropriate, are expeotde t
paid:
5-year period 5-year period
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 —2018 2019 — 2023

Pension benefits 25 16 16 16 16 89 72
Other long-term employee benefits 17 15 14 13 13 72 55
Total expected benefits to be paid 42 31 30 29 29 161 127

Note 15.Stockholders’ equity

Common stock
As of December  As of December

31,2013 31,2012
(thousands of (thousands of
shares) shares)
Authorized and issued common stock, par value@®Russian rubles each 850,563 850,563
Treasury stock (95,697) (95,697)
Qutstanding common stock 754,866 754,866

Dividends and dividend limitations

Profits available for distribution to common stoolders in respect of any reporting period are deitezd
by reference to the statutory financial statemeftthe Company prepared in accordance with the lafws
the Russian Federation and denominated in Russides: Under Russian Law, dividends are limiteth®
net profits of the reporting year as set out ingtatutory financial statements of the Company.s€haws
and other legislative acts governing the rightsiodireholders to receive dividends are subject timys
interpretations.

The Company’s net profits were 209,871 million Rassrubles, 217,807 million Russian rubles and
271,934 million Russian rubles respectively for 202012 and 2011, pursuant to the statutory firenci
statements, which at the US dollar exchange ratesf ®ecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, amounted to
$6,412 million, $7,171 million and $8,446 milliorgspectively.
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Note 15. Stockholders’ equity (continued)

At the extraordinary stockholders’ meeting on Seftter 30, 2013, interim dividends for the first haff
2013 were declared in the amount of 50.00 Rusgidtes per common share, which at the date of the
meeting was equivalent to $1.55. Dividends payabl$10 million and $12 million are included in “Gth
current liabilities” in the consolidated balancests as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively

At the annual stockholders’ meeting on June 27 32@ividends for 2012 were declared in the amodint o
50.00 Russian rubles per common share, which atlakes of the meeting was equivalent to $1.52. At th
extraordinary stockholders’ meeting on December2082, interim dividends for 2012 were declarethim
amount of 40.00 Russian rubles per common shareshwdt the date of the meeting was equivalent to
$1.30. Total dividends for 2012 were declared i@ #mount of 90.00 Russian rubles per common share,
which was equivalent to $2.82.

At the annual stockholders’ meeting on June 2722@ividends for 2011 were declared in the amodint o
75.00 Russian rubles per common share, which atdteeof the meeting was equivalent to $2.26.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings pere for these years was as follows:

Year ended Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Net income 7,832 11,004 10,357
Add back interest and accretion on 2.625% convertits
dollar bonds, maturing 2015 (net of tax at effextiate) 65 64 63
Total diluted net income 7,897 11,068 10,420
Weighted average number of outstanding common share
(thousands of shares) 754,866 760,588 778,964
Add back treasury shares held in respect of coierdebt
(thousands of shares) 21,189 20,509 20,383
Weighted average number of outstanding common share
assuming dilution (thousands of shares) 776,055 ,0891 799,347
Earnings per share of common stock attributable to
OAO LUKOIL (US dollars):
Basic 10.38 14.47 13.30
Diluted 10.18 14.17 13.04

Note 16.Financial and derivative instruments
Fair value

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents (L&yeturrent and long-term accounts receivable ¢L8Y
are approximately equal to their value as disclésdabe consolidated financial statements. Thevalue of
long-term receivables was determined by discountiilhp estimated market interest rates for similar
financing arrangements.

The fair value of long-term debt (Level 3) diffédr®m the carrying amount in the consolidated finahc
statements. The estimated fair value of long-terebtdas of December 31, 2013 and 2012 was
$11,077 million and $7,035 million, respectivelygtermined as a result of discounting using estichate
market interest rates for similar financing arrangats. These amounts include all future cash ousflo
associated with the long-term debt repaymentsudict the current portion and interest. Market resée
rates mean the rates of raising long-term debtdmpanies with a similar credit rating for simil@nbrs,
repayment schedules and similar other main terrosinB the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group
did not have significant transactions or events thauld result in nonfinancial assets and lialakti
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.
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Note 16. Financial and derivative instruments (coribued)

Derivative instruments

The Group uses financial and commodity-based diérev&ontracts to manage exposures to fluctuations
foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prioegp exploit market opportunities. Since the Grasip
not currently using hedge accounting, defined bgid815,“Derivative and hedging,”of the Codification,
all gains and losses, realized or unrealized, flenivative contracts have been recognized in poofioss.

Topic 815 of the Codification requires purchase aatks contracts for commodities that are readily
convertible to cash (e.g., crude oil, natural gad gasoline) to be recorded on the balance sheet as
derivatives unless the contracts are for quantitiesGroup expects to use or sell over a reasomeied in

the normal course of business (i.e., contractsbédigor the normal purchases and normal salespixu®.

The Group does apply the normal purchases and heaits exception to certain long-term contractselb

oil products. This normal purchases and normalssekeeption is applied to eligible crude oil anfined
product commodity purchase and sales contracts.edMerythe Group may elect not to apply this exoepti
(e.g., when another derivative instrument will Isedito mitigate the risk of a purchase or salegrachnbut
hedge accounting will not be applied; in which cheth the purchase or sales contract and the disgva
contract mitigating the resulting risk will be reded on the balance sheet at fair value).

The fair value hierarchy for the Group’s derivatiassets and liabilities accounted for at fair vadnea
recurring basis was:

As of December 31, 2013 As of December 31, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tdta
Assets
Commodity derivatives - 645 - 645 - 417 - 417
Total assets - 645 - 645 - 417 - 417
Liabilities
Commodity derivatives - (761) - (761) - (459) - (459)
Total liabilities - (761) - (761) - (459) - (459)
Net liabilities - (116) - (116) - (42) - (42)

The derivative values above are based on an asaysiach contract as the fundamental unit of atcasi
required by Topic 820;Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuresgf the Codification. Therefore,
derivative assets and liabilities with the samenterparty are not reflected net where the legaitrinf
offset exists. Gains or losses from contracts ia [@vel may be offset by gains or losses on cotsric
another level or by changes in values of physicaltracts or positions that are not reflected in tidgde
above.

Commodity derivatives are valued using quotatiorided by brokers and price index developers. &hes
guotes are corroborated with market data and assitied as Level 2 fair value measurements. Cortynod
derivatives are valued using industry-standard rsotfet consider various assumptions, includingtegio
forward prices for commodities, time value, volgtilfactors, and contractual prices for the undedy
instruments, as well as other relevant economicsores.

Commodity derivative contracts

The Group operates in the worldwide crude oil,nedi product, natural gas and natural gas liquidkeis

and is exposed to fluctuations in the prices feséthcommodities. These fluctuations can affecGitoeip’s
revenues as well as the cost of operating, invgstid financing activities. Generally, the Groupddicy is

to remain exposed to the market prices of comnmexlitHowever, the Group uses futures, forwards, swap
and options in various markets to balance physigalems, meet customer needs, manage price exposure
on specific transactions, and do an immaterial arhotitrading not directly related to the Grouptsypical
business. These activities may move the Group’Bl@@way from market average prices.
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Note 16. Financial and derivative instruments (coribued)

The fair value of commodity derivative assets aabilities was:

As of December As of December

31, 2013 31,2012
Assets
Accounts receivable 645 417
Liabilities
Accounts payable (761) (459)

Hedge accounting has not been used for items itatiie.

As required under Topic 815 of the Codification #irmounts shown in the preceding table are presented
gross (i.e., without netting assets and liabilivggh the same counterparty where the right of eiffsnd
intent to net exist). Derivative assets and ligilesi resulting from eligible commodity contractsréeeen
netted in the consolidated balance sheet and eoeded as accounts receivable in the amount of iti@m

and accounts payable in the amount of $122 million.

Financial results from commodity derivatives wereclided in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in “Cost of purchased crudegais and products” and during the year ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounted to net |0$2a#f million (of which realized loss was $132 naitli
and unrealized loss was $68 million) and net Ids83@1 million (of which realized loss was $300 lioih

and unrealized loss was $21 million), respectively.

For each Group trading company there is a limitngpe combination of quantity and value-at-riskjlie
amount of unhedged fixed-price commodity positipesmissible. The Group’s net commodity position is
reviewed daily.

Financial and commodity-based derivative contracéssubject to fluctuations in value. These flutttues

are generally offset by the value of the underlyaxgposures being hedged. Future changes in theetmark
values of certain financial instruments may resnltoff-balance-sheet risk in excess of the amounts
currently recognized in the consolidated balanezth

Currency exchange rate derivative contracts

The Group has foreign currency exchange rate gsklting from its international operations. The @ro
does not comprehensively hedge the exposure t@rayrrate changes, although the Group selectively
hedges certain foreign currency exchange rate exesssuch as firm commitments for capital projects
local currency tax payments and dividends.

The fair value of foreign currency derivative assand liabilities open as of December 31, 2013 mais
significant.

The impact from foreign currency derivatives durthg year ended December 31, 2013 on the consadidat
statement of comprehensive income was not sigmificBhe net position of outstanding foreign curgenc
swap contracts as of December 31, 2013 also wasgraficant.

Credit risk

The Group’s financial instruments that are potdigtiaxposed to concentrations of credit risk consis
primarily of cash equivalents, over-the-counteradive contracts and trade receivables. Cash atgnts
are placed in high-quality commercial paper, momayket funds and time deposits with major inteorzl
banks and financial institutions.
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Note 16. Financial and derivative instruments (coribued)

The credit risk from the Group’s over-the-counteridative contracts, such as forwards and swaps/ete
from the counterparty to the transaction, typicalymajor bank or financial institution. Individual
counterparty exposure is managed within predetexthicredit limits and includes the use of cash-call
margins when appropriate, thereby reducing the afskignificant non-performance. The Group alsosuse
futures contracts, but futures have a negligibleditrrisk because they are traded on the New York
Mercantile Exchange or the IntercontinentalExchaii@& Futures).

Certain of the Group’s derivative instruments confarovisions that require the Group to post celat if
the derivative exposure exceeds a threshold amdtetGroup has contracts with fixed threshold aneun
and other contracts with variable threshold amotimi$ are contingent on the Group’s credit ratifilge
variable threshold amounts typically decline fowés credit ratings, while both the variable andefix
threshold amounts typically revert to zero if theo@'s credit rating falls below investment gra@ash is
the primary collateral in all contracts; howeveany contracts also permit the Group to post lettérsedit
as collateral.

There were no derivative instruments with such itmésk-related contingent features that were Irahility
position as of December 31, 2013. The Group po$tdnillion in collateral in the normal course of
business for the over-the-counter derivativeshdf Group’s credit rating were lowered one levehfribs
“BBB” rating (per Standard and Poors) as of Decanfide 2013, and it would be below investment grade,
the Group would be required to post additionalatellal of $5 million to the Group’s counterpartiesthe
over-the-counter derivatives, either with cashetters of credit. The maximum additional collatdsated

on the lowest downgrade would be $25 million iratot

Note 17.Business combinations

In December 2013, after approval by European réguylaauthorities, the Group acquired the remaining
20% interest in the joint venture which operates I®AB refining complex (Priolo, Italy) for €426 Hibn
(approximately $583 million) after final adjustmsrihcreasing its stake in the joint venture fronds3t
100%. This transaction was exercised in line wité initial agreement on the establishment of thet jo
venture signed in 2008. This agreement gave thenskeiivestor — ERG S.p.A. a step-by-step put option
sell its share in the joint venture to the GroupeTGroup obtained control over this joint ventune i
September 2012, when within this agreement it aedua 20% interest in the joint venture for €494iani
(approximately $621 million) and increased its st&k 80%. The Group allocated $646 million to goibidw
$2,914 million to property, plant and equipmentd®million to deferred tax liability, $1,024 millioto
current assets and $444 million to current lialedit The value of property, plant and equipment was
determined by an independent appraiser.

In April 2013, after approval by the Federal Antbnopoly Service, in line with the strategy to irase
crude oil production in Russia the Company purctiab@0% of the shares of ZAO Samara-Nafta for
$2.1 billion after final adjustments. ZAO Samarafidlas an exploration and production company ofegat
in the Samara and Uljanovsk regions of the Rus$iaderation. The Group preliminarily allocated
$2,384 million to property, plant and equipment3$illion to current assets, $311 million to deéektax
liability and $142 million to current liabilities.

In April-May 2013, Group companies acquired the a@nmg 50% of the shares of ZAO Kama-oil for

$400 million increasing the Group’s ownership up1@0%. As a result of this acquisition the Group
obtained control and consolidated ZAO Kama-oil.eaploration and production company operating in the
Perm region of the Russian Federation.
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Note 18.Commitments and contingencies
Capital expenditure, exploration and investment grams

Under the terms of existing exploration and proiturcticense agreements in Russia the Group hadftth f
certain obligations: oil and gas exploration, welidling, fields development, etc., and the Gralgo has
commitments to reach a defined level of extractonthe fields. Management believes that the Group’s
approved annual capital expenditure budgets futlyec all the requirements of the described license
obligations.

In February 2013, the Group started to construga@uum gasoil refinery complex at OOO LUKOIL-
Volgogradneftepererabotka. Completion is expectetha end of 2015. As of December 31, 2013, the
amount of capital commitment related to this cangton is evaluated as $1,328 million.

In 2012, a construction agreement for a heavy-tesidydrocracking complex at LUKOIL Neftochim
Bourgas AD in Bulgaria was signed. Commissioningh&f complex is expected in 2015. As of December
31, 2013, the amount of capital commitment relabeithis construction is evaluated as $518 million.

Group companies have commitments for capital expemdcontributions in the amount of $318 million
related to various production sharing agreemengs the next 24 years.

The Company has signed a three-year agreemenhdoydars 2013-2015 for drilling services with EDC

Group Advisory Company Limited. The volume of theservices is based on the Group’s capital

construction program, which is re-evaluated on mmual basis. As of December 31, 2013, the amount of
capital commitment under this agreement for 20lv@uated as $1,482 million.

The Company has signed a strategic agreement doortjoing provision of construction, engineering an
technical services with ZAO Globalstroy-Engineerimge volume of these services is based on theg@ou
capital construction program, which is re-evaluatedan annual basis. As of December 31, 2013, the
amount of capital commitment under this agreeman2®14 is evaluated as $215 million.

The Group has signed a number of agreements fory¢laes 2013-2015 for construction of offshore
platforms in the Caspian region. As of December Z113, the amount of this capital commitment is
evaluated as $1,371 million.

The Group has a commitment to execute the capitadtouction program of its power generation segment
and under the terms of this program power plantls avtotal capacity of 890 MW should be constructes
of December 31, 2013, the amount of this commitrmeataluated as $87 million.

Operating lease obligations

Group companies have commitments of $453 milliomarily for the lease of vessels and petroleum
distribution outlets. Operating lease expenses B285 million, $218 million and $175 million durirtbe
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,ctesghe Commitments for minimum rentals under
these leases as of December 31, 2013 are as follows

As of December

31, 2013
2014 154
2015 82
2016 57
2017 43
2018 37
beyond 80
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Note 18. Commitments and contingencies (continued)
Insurance

The insurance industry in the Russian Federatiehcantain other areas where the Group has opesaition

in the course of development. Management belidvatsthe Group has adequate property damage coverage
for its main production assets. In respect of thpedty liability for property and environmental dage
arising from accidents on Group property or retatim Group operations, the Group has insuranceragee

that is generally higher than insurance limitstsethe local legal requirements. Management bedigkiat

the Group has adequate insurance coverage ofgke& rihich could have a material effect on the @Gimu
operations and financial position.

Environmental liabilities

Group companies and their predecessor entities tyaexated in the Russian Federation and other deant
for many years and, within certain parts of therapiens, environmental related problems have deezlo
Environmental regulations are currently under adesition in the Russian Federation and other areas
where the Group has operations. Group companiesnedyl assess and evaluate their obligations in
response to new and changing legislation.

As liabilities in respect of the Group’s environnenobligations are able to be determined, they are
recognized in profit or loss. The likelihood andamt of liabilities relating to environmental olditpns
under proposed or any future legislation cannotrdssonably estimated at present and could become
material. Under existing legislation, however, ngaraent believes that there are no significant o
liabilities or contingencies, which could have atenally adverse effect on the operating resultBramcial
position of the Group.

Social assets

Certain Group companies contribute to Governmerdnspred programs, the maintenance of local
infrastructure and the welfare of their employeathiw the Russian Federation and elsewhere. Such
contributions include assistance with the consitoactdevelopment and maintenance of housing, halspit
and transport services, recreation and other sogats. The funding of such assistance is perithgica
determined by management and is appropriately alggmt (only to the extent that they are expected t
result in future economic benefits to the Groupgxpensed as incurred.

Taxation environment

The taxation systems in the Russian Federatiorotira emerging markets where Group companies aperat
are relatively new and are characterized by nunsetaxes and frequently changing legislation, whgh
often unclear, contradictory, and subject to intet@tion. Often, differing interpretations exist @mg
different tax authorities within the same juristhols and among taxing authorities in differentgdictions.
Taxes are subject to review and investigation bymber of authorities, who are enabled by law tpdse
severe fines, penalties and interest chargeseliRtissian Federation a tax year remains open f@awey

the tax authorities during the three subsequemndalr years. However, under certain circumstandes a
year may remain open longer. Recent events withénRussian Federation suggest that the tax au#worit
are taking a more assertive position in their prtetation and enforcement of tax legislation. Sfatdtors
may create substantially more significant taxati®ks in the Russian Federation and other emerging
markets where Group companies operate, than tmoséhér countries where taxation regimes have been
subject to development and clarification over |pegiods.
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Note 18. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

The tax authorities in each region may have a whffeinterpretation of similar taxation issues vhinay
result in taxation issues successfully defendedheyGroup in one region being unsuccessful in aroth
region. There is some direction provided from thatwal authority based in Moscow on particular texa
issues. The Group has implemented tax planningr@ahgement strategies based on existing legislation
the time of implementation. The Group is subjediatoauthority audits on an ongoing basis, as isnabin
the Russian environment and other republics ofdhmer Soviet Union, and, at times, the authoritiase
attempted to impose additional significant taxegl@ Group. Management believes that it has adelyuat
met and provided for tax liabilities based on i$erpretation of existing tax legislation. Howevére
relevant tax authorities may have differing intetptions and the effects on the financial statespéhthe
authorities were successful in enforcing theirrptetations, could be significant.

Litigation and claims

On November 27, 2001, Archangel Diamond Corporaf@xDC”"), a Canadian diamond development
company, filed a lawsuit in the Denver District @yuColorado against OAO Arkhangelskgeoldobycha
(“AGD"), a Group company, and the Company (togettiee “Defendants”). ADC alleged that the
Defendants interfered with the transfer of a diacherploration license to Almazny Bereg, a joint tvea
between ADC and AGD. ADC claimed compensatory dawagf $1.2 billion and punitive damages of
$3.6 billion. On October 15, 2002, the District @odismissed the lawsuit for lack of personal jdigsion.
This ruling was upheld by the Colorado Court of Agls on March 25, 2004. However, on November 21,
2005, due to a procedural error, the Colorado Supr€ourt remanded the case to the Colorado Court of
Appeals and the Colorado Court of Appeals remankedaase to the District Court. On October 20, 2011
the Denver District Court dismissed all claims agathe Company for lack of jurisdiction. On Augast
2012, the Colorado Court of Appeals affirmed thégidion. On July 1, 2013, the Colorado Supreme Cour
denied ADC'’s Petition for Writ of Certiorari. Th@ge in the state court is therefore over.

On January 6, 2012, ADC filed a lawsuit in the UiStict Court for the District of Colorado (federaburt)
reasserting almost identical claims asserted inaffloeementioned lawsuit and dismissed by the Denver
District Court (state court) notwithstanding ADGippeal of the state court's decision. In a Fed€mlrt
case, the Company has filed a Motion to Dismissdiscbvery has been stayed pending further acib

has appealed the decision to stay discovery toUBeDistrict Court. The court hearing took place on
November 19, 2013. The ruling of the judge is exgpedo be issued soon. The Company plans to seek
dismissal of the case and vigorously defend thegemaManagement does not believe that the ultimate
resolution of this matter will have a material acbeeeffect on the Group’s financial condition.

The Group is involved in various other claims amdal proceedings arising in the normal course of
business. While these claims may seek substaiahdes against the Group and are subject to umtgrta
inherent in any litigation, management does noteliel that the ultimate resolution of such matteils w
have a material adverse impact on the Group’s tipgreesults or financial condition.

Note 19.Related party transactions

In the rapidly developing business environmenthi@ Russian Federation, companies and individuals ha
frequently used nominees and other forms of intdiamg companies in transactions. The senior
management of the Company believes that the Graspappropriate procedures in place to identify and
properly disclose transactions with related partiesthis environment and has disclosed all of the
relationships identified which it deemed to be #igant. Related party sales and purchases ofrull @il
products were primarily to and from affiliated commes. Related party processing services were gedvi
by affiliated refineries.

Below are related party transactions not discladsdwhere in the consolidated financial statemda$er
also to Notes 3, 7, 11 and 20 for other transastiith related parties.

Sales of oil and oil products to related partiesen®487 million, $1,038 million and $1,298 millidor the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ctasghp.
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Note 19. Related party transactions (continued)

Other sales to related parties were $62 millior) 88llion and $54 million for the years ended Debem
31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Purchases of oil and oil products from related ipartwere $1,426 million, $1,368 million and
$1,022 million for the years ended December 3132@Q012 and 2011, respectively.

Purchases of processing services from relatedegantere $228 million, $702 million and $901 millitor
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 28ddeatively.

Other purchases from related parties were $195omjl$92 million and $73 million for the years edde
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Amounts receivable from related parties, includamgrt-term loans and advances, were $470 milliah an
$496 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, getbgely. Amounts payable to related parties were
$176 million and $159 million as of December 3112@nd 2012, respectively.

Note 20. Compensation plan

During the period from 2010 to 2012, the Company a&ompensation plan available to certain memtifers
management, which was based on assigned shar@sasdied compensation consisting of two parts.

The first part represented annual bonuses that based on the number of assigned shares and amibunt
dividend per share. The payment of these bonuses eomtingent on the Group meeting certain findncia
KPIs in each financial year. The second part waedaipon the Company’s common stock appreciation
from 2010 to 2012, with rights vested in Decemb@l2 The number of assigned shares for this
compensation plan was approximately 17.3 millioarsh.

For the first part of the share plan the Group gaeixed a liability based on expected dividends amahber
of assigned shares. The second part of the shamneophinally was classified as equity settled2012, this
compensation plan was amended in relation to atlgigants, which resulted in reclassification bétplan
as a liability settled. Liability for this part ¢iie share plan was settled in January-April 2013.

In late December 2012, the Company introduced a wewpensation plan to certain members of
management for the period from 2013 to 2017. lisdit@mns are similar to the conditions of the pomd
compensation plan after modification. The numbesssigned shares is approximately 19 million shares

For the first part of the new share plan the Groegognized a liability based on expected divideand
number of assigned shares.

The second part of the new share plan was clagsafieliability settled. The grant date and repgrtiate
fair value of this part of the plan was estimaté$249 million and $229 million, respectively, ugithe
Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. The mgjpg date fair value was estimated assuming & risk
free interest rate of 7.0% per annum, an expedtiademd yield of 4.67% per annum, an expected time
maturity of four years and a volatility factor 06.8%. The expected volatility factor for the annwaighted
average share price was estimated based on tleidastvolatility of the Company’s shares for theyious
seven year period up to January 2013.

Related to these plans the Group recorded $1090mil$182 million and $137 million of compensation
expense during the years ended December 31, 20123,ahd 2011, respectively, of which $98 millionswa
recognized as an increase in additional paid-intaladuring the year ended December 31, 2011. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, $52 million and $380omirelated to these plans are included in “Other
current liabilities” of the consolidated balancests, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, there was $183 milliontatfl unrecognized compensation cost related to
unvested benefits. This cost is expected to begrézed periodically by the Group up to December7201
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Note 21.Segment information

Presented below is information about the Group®srafing and geographical segments for the yearsdend
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, in accordanck Wipic 280, “Segment reporting,” of the
Codification

The Group has the following operating segments plogation and production; refining, marketing and
distribution; chemicals; power generation and otheisiness segments. These segments have been
determined based on the nature of their operatidasagement on a regular basis assesses the panfoem

of these operating segments. The exploration aodyation segment explores for, develops and praduce
primarily crude oil. The refining, marketing andstlibution segment processes crude oil into refined
products and purchases, sells and transports aildend refined petroleum products. The chemicals
segment refines and sells chemical products. Tiepgeneration segment produces steam and elégtrici
distributes them and provides related services.dhieities of the other business operating segrmshtide
businesses beyond the Group’s traditional operstion

Geographical segments are based on the area oftigpsr and include two segments: Russia and
International.

Operating segments

Refining,
Exploration marketing and Power

2013 and production distribution Chemicals generation  Other Elimination Consolidated
Sales

Third parties 2,900 135,189 1,681 1,573 109 - 32,4

Inter-segment 43,555 1,686 302 1,779 3,205 (50,527) -
Total sales 46,455 136,875 1,983 3,352 3,314 (59,52 141,452
Operating expenses 5,759 3,718 784 2,156 2,730 061p, 10,086
Depreciation, depletion and
amortization 3,698 1,545 66 362 118 (33) 5,756
Interest expense 719 527 46 103 712 (1,619) 488
Income tax expense 1,640 1,146 35 (60) (5) 75 2,831
Net income (net loss) 7,528 1,166 (501) (415) (224 278 7,832
Total assets 80,182 71,883 665 4,098 20,744 (68,133 109,439
Capital expenditures 11,808 2,715 113 285 513 - 35,4

Refining,
Exploration marketing and Power

2012 and production distribution Chemicals generation  Other Elimination Consolidated
Sales

Third parties 3,471 132,798 1,362 1,411 129 - 1Rp,1

Inter-segment 43,998 1,845 307 1,557 2,926 (50,633) -
Total sales 47,469 134,643 1,669 2,968 3,055 (89,63 139,171
Operating expenses 5,245 3,579 568 1,867 2,299 1994, 9,359
Depreciation, depletion and
amortization 3,085 1,347 65 248 124 (37) 4,832
Interest expense 854 698 47 73 557 (1,691) 538
Income tax expense 1,935 696 57 34 52 24 2,798
Net income (net loss) 8,447 3,518 (279) (278) (363) (42) 11,004
Total assets 68,058 69,769 1,166 4,530 20,512 185,0 98,961
Capital expenditures 8,973 2,007 90 503 277 - 11,850
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Note 21. Segment information (continued)

Refining,

Exploration marketing and Power

2011 and production distribution Chemicals generation  Other Elimination Consolidated
Sales

Third parties 3,801 126,313 1,944 1,472 120 - 153,6

Inter-segment 41,416 1,910 500 1,520 2,467 (47,813) -
Total sales 45,217 128,223 2,444 2,992 2,587 (85,81 133,650
Operating expenses 4,377 3,920 459 2,098 2,029 8283, 9,055
Depreciation, depletion and
amortization 2,896 1,217 63 224 129 (56) 4,473
Interest expense 741 711 20 47 505 (1,330) 694
Income tax expense 2,109 1,057 43 (5) 10 79 3,293
Net income (net loss) 6,742 3,610 (27) (@127) (370) 529 10,357
Total assets 60,838 61,792 1,488 4,220 21,201 433,3 91,192
Capital expenditures 6,677 1,306 89 196 224 - 8,492
Geographical segments

2013 2012 2011

Sales of crude oil within Russia 3,071 1,634 1,571
Export of crude oil and sales of crude oil by fgresubsidiaries 24,270 26,036 32,522
Sales of refined products within Russia 17,476 16,803 15,242
Export of refined products and sales of refinecdpads by foreign
subsidiaries 87,796 86,604 76,335
Sales of chemicals within Russia 886 418 914
Export of chemicals and sales of chemicals by fpreiubsidiaries 936 992 1,095
Other sales within Russia 3,475 3,281 3,213
Other export sales and other sales by foreign digvsgs 3,542 3,403 2,758
Total sales 141,452 139,171 133,650
2013 Russia International Elimination Consolidated
Sales

Third parties 26,552 114,900 - 141,452

Inter-segment 39,193 151 (39,344) -
Total sales 65,745 115,051 (39,344) 141,452
Operating expenses 8,117 2,048 (79) 10,086
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 4,607 9,14 - 5,756
Interest expense 34 547 (93) 488
Income tax expense 2,390 419 22 2,831
Net income (net loss) 8,724 (1,234) 342 7,832
Total assets 87,469 37,176 (15,206) 109,439
Capital expenditures 10,859 4,575 - 15,434
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Note 21. Segment information (continued)

2012 Russia International Elimination Consolidated
Sales

Third parties 25,370 113,801 - 139,171

Inter-segment 39,355 200 (39,555) -
Total sales 64,725 114,001 (39,555) 139,171
Operating expenses 7,333 2,113 (87) 9,359
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 3,834 998 - 4,832
Interest expense 194 504 (160) 538
Income tax expense 2,316 489 (7 2,798
Net income 10,238 776 (10) 11,004
Total assets 78,515 36,108 (15,662) 98,961
Capital expenditures 9,343 2,507 - 11,850
2011 Russia International Elimination Consolidated
Sales

Third parties 24,674 108,976 - 133,650

Inter-segment 39,567 143 (39,710) -
Total sales 64,241 109,119 (39,710) 133,650
Operating expenses 6,999 2,094 (38) 9,055
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 3,692 781 - 4,473
Interest expense 338 477 (121) 694
Income tax expense 2,715 554 24 3,293
Net income 9,769 4 584 10,357
Total assets 73,150 34,384 (16,342) 91,192
Capital expenditures 6,516 1,976 - 8,492

The Group’s international sales to third partieslude sales in Switzerland of $66,070 million,
$67,057 million and $66,884 million for the yearsled December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
The Group’s international sales to third partiedude sales in the USA of $12,865 million, $12,&4ilion

and $9,496 million for the years ended DecembeRB13, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These amouets a
attributed to individual countries based on thésjliction of subsidiaries making the sale.

Note 22.Subsequent events

In accordance with the requirements of Topic 8Tybsequent events6f the Codificationthe Group
evaluated subsequent events through the date theoliated financial statements were availabledo b
issued. Therefore subsequent events were evalbatie Group up to February 17, 2014.
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This section provides unaudited supplemental infdiom on oil and gas exploration and production
activities in accordance with Topic 93Disclosures About Oil and Gas Producing Activitiesof the

Coadification in six separate tables:

I.  Capitalized costs relating to oil and gas produciatiyities.
Il. Costs incurred in oil and gas property acquisitexploration, and development activities.
Ill. Results of operations for oil and gas produciniyits.

IV. Reserve quantity information.

V. Standardized measure of discounted future netftash.

VI. Principal sources of changes in the standardizexsure of discounted future net cash flows.

Amounts shown for equity companies represent theus share in its exploration and production
affiliates, which are accounted for using the gguaiethod of accounting.

I. Capitalized costs relating to oil and gas produng activities

Total Group's share
consolidated in equity
As of December 31, 2013 International Russia companies companies
Unproved oil and gas properties 1,450 3,441 4,891 635
Proved oil and gas properties 11,320 69,341 80,661 2,493
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, and
amortization (2,718) (24,923) (27,641) (973)
Net capitalized costs 10,052 47,859 57,911 2,155
Total Group’s share
consolidated in equity
As of December 31, 2012 International Russia companies companies
Unproved oil and gas properties 1,145 2,393 3,538 551
Proved oil and gas properties 8,555 59,054 67,609 2,436
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, and
amortization (2,213) (22,150) (24,363) (838)
Net capitalized costs 7,487 39,297 46,784 2,149
Total Group’s share
consolidated in equity
As of December 31, 2011 International Russia companies companies
Unproved oil and gas properties 659 1,192 1,851 166
Proved oil and gas properties 7,479 52,891 60,370 2,315
Accumulated depreciation, depletion, and
amortization (1,762) (19,656) (21,418) (718)
Net capitalized costs 6,376 34,427 40,803 1,763
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II. Costs incurred in oil and gas property acquisin, exploration, and development activities

Total Group’s share

consolidated in equity
Year ended December 31, 2013 International Russia companies companies
Acquisition of properties — proved - 2,200 2,200 -
Acquisition of properties — unproved 15 1,914 1,929 10
Exploration costs 234 543 777 18
Development costs 3,234 7,782 11,016 162
Total costs incurred 3,483 12,439 15,922 190

Total Group’s share

consolidated in equity
Year ended December 31, 2012 International Russia companies companies
Acquisition of properties — proved 97 - 97 -
Acquisition of properties — unproved 37 937 974 -
Exploration costs 144 525 669 16
Development costs 1,621 6,560 8,181 490
Total costs incurred 1,899 8,022 9,921 506

Total Group's share

consolidated in equity
Year ended December 31, 2011 International Russia companies companies
Acquisition of properties — proved - 41 41 -
Acquisition of properties — unproved 70 164 234 -
Exploration costs 507 358 865 8
Development costs 968 4,774 5,742 123
Total costs incurred 1,545 5,337 6,882 131

lll. Results of operations for oil and gas producing mities

The Group’s results of operations for oil and gesdpcing activities are presented below. In acaoecda
with Topic 932 of the Codification, sales and tfens to Group companies are based on market prices.
Income taxes are based on statutory rates. Thégesiwoperations exclude corporate overhead atefant
costs.

Total Group’s share

consolidated in equity

Year ended December 31, 2013 International Russia companies companies
Revenue

Sales 2,722 22,233 24,955 1,632

Transfers - 17,776 17,776 49
Total revenues 2,722 40,009 42,731 1,681
Production costs (excluding production taxes) (314) (4,021) (4,335) (141)
Exploration expense (384) (218) (602) 3)
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization, and
valuation provision (544) (3,150) (3,694) (140)
Taxes other than income taxes (352) (23,092) (23,444) (527)
Related income taxes (278) (1,717) (1,995) (355)
Total results of operations for producing actistie 850 7,811 8,661 515
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Total Group’s share

consolidated in equity

Year ended December 31, 2012 International Russia companies companies
Revenue

Sales 2,910 23,011 25,921 1,728

Transfers - 17,165 17,165 34
Total revenues 2,910 40,176 43,086 1,762
Production costs (excluding production taxes) (299) (3,562) (3,861) (126)
Exploration expense (159) (205) (364) (6)
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization, and
valuation provision (500) (2,568) (3,068) (126)
Taxes other than income taxes (399) (24,247) (24,646) (564)
Related income taxes (428) (1,618) (2,046) (423)
Total results of operations for producing actiitie 1,125 7,976 9,101 517

Total Group’s share
consolidated in equity

Year ended December 31, 2011 International Russia companies companies
Revenue

Sales 2,656 25,373 28,029 1,924

Transfers - 14,107 14,107 14
Total revenues 2,656 39,480 42,136 1,938
Production costs (excluding production taxes) (242) (3,529) (3,771) (93)
Exploration expense (439) (93) (532) )
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization, and
valuation provision (324) (2,542) (2,866) (125)
Taxes other than income taxes (460) (23,817) (24,277) (640)
Related income taxes (531) (1,824) (2,355) (407)
Total results of operations for producing actiitie 660 7,675 8,335 671

IV. Reserve gquantity information

Proved reserves are the estimated quantities @noilgas reserves which geological and engineelidtay
demonstrate will be recoverable with reasonableéaody in future years from known reservoirs under
existing economic and operating conditions. In adance with Topic 932 of the Codification existing
economic and operating conditions are based od2kfaonths average price and the year-end costgeéro
reserves do not include additional quantities bfind gas reserves that may result from applyicorsdary

or tertiary recovery techniques not yet testeddatdrmined to be economic.

Proved developed reserves are the quantities ekgdroeserves expected to be recovered throughrexist
wells with existing equipment and operating methods

Due to the inherent uncertainties and the necégdimnited nature of reservoir data, estimates edarves
are inherently imprecise, require the applicatidnjulgment and are subject to change as additional

information becomes available.

Management has included within proved reservesfgignt quantities which the Group expects to praalu
after the expiry dates of certain of its currenddqurction licenses in the Russian Federation. THes&U
Law of the Russian Federation states that, upoiradiqn, a license is subject to renewal at thédtive of
the license holder provided that further explomtiappraisal, production or remediation activitee
necessary and provided that the license holdendiagiolated the terms of the license. Since tinedaplies
both to newly issued and old licenses and the Gragcurrently renewed more than 50% of its license
management believes that licenses will be renevpen their expiration for the remainder of the ecuoiw

life of each respective field.
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Estimated net proved oil and gas reserves and elahgreto for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2
and 2011, are shown in the tables set out below.

Group's share

Millions of barrels Consolidated subsidiaries in equity
companies
International Russia Total

Crude oll

January 1, 2011 371 12,654 13,025 294
Revisions of previous estimates (12) 246 234 7
Purchase of hydrocarbons in place - 7 7 -
Extensions and discoveries 4 515 519 1
Production (26) (636) (662) (22)

December 31, 2011 337 12,786 13,123 280
Revisions of previous estimates Q) 67 66 Q)
Purchase of hydrocarbons in place 42 - 42 -
Extensions and discoveries 40 511 551 2
Production (25) (631) (656) (22)
Sales of reserves (2) (3) (5) -

December 31, 2012 391 12,730 13,121 260
Revisions of previous estimates 11 (38) (27) (2)
Purchase of hydrocarbons in place* - 194 194 )
Extensions and discoveries 14 585 599 7
Production (24) (640) (664) (20)

December 31, 2013 392 12,831 13,223 238

Proved developed reserves

December 31, 2011 197 8,397 8,594 178

December 31, 2012 136 8,241 8,377 160

December 31, 2013 129 7,972 8,101 136

* Purchase of hydrocarbons in place for equity canies includes transfers of reserves to the categelil group upon those equity
companies becoming subject to consolidation.

The non-controlling interest share included in #di®ove total proved reserves was 74 million barrels,
71 million barrels and 163 million barrels as of d@mber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The non-controlling interest share included in éieve proved developed reserves was 40 millioretsarr
43 million barrels and 96 million barrels as of Bewer 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Substantially all non-controlling interests reltdehe reserves in the Russian Federation.
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Group's share

Billions of cubic feet Consolidated subsidiaries in equity
companies
International Russia Total
Natural gas

January 1, 2011 6,507 16,833 23,340 275
Revisions of previous estimates (487) 253 (234) 25

Purchase of hydrocarbons in place - 1 1 -
Extensions and discoveries 240 309 549 1
Production (189) (545) (734) (27)
December 31, 2011 6,071 16,851 22,922 274
Revisions of previous estimates (155) 602 447 12
Purchase of hydrocarbons in place 1 - 1 -
Extensions and discoveries 93 595 688 5
Production (248) (571) (819) (26)
Sales of reserves (17) - (17) -
December 31, 2012 5,745 17,477 23,222 265
Revisions of previous estimates 325 529 854 17
Purchase of hydrocarbons in place* - 9 9 2)
Extensions and discoveries - 168 168 3
Production (247) (618) (865) (29)
December 31, 2013 5,823 17,565 23,388 254

Proved developed reserves:

December 31, 2011 3,250 6,065 9,315 163
December 31, 2012 2,505 6,066 8,571 156
December 31, 2013 1,476 5,942 7,418 129

* Purchase of hydrocarbons in place for equity canips includes transfers of reserves to the catetelil group upon those equity
companies becoming subject to consolidation.

The non-controlling interest share included in #im®ve total proved reserves was 26 billion cubet,fe
23 billion cubic feet and 31 billion cubic feet aé December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The non-controlling interest share included in #move proved developed reserves was 14 billionccubi
feet, 14 billion cubic feet and 21 billion cubiceteas of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respbcti
Substantially all non-controlling interests reltdehe reserves in the Russian Federation.

V. Standardized measure of discounted future nesttdlows

The standardized measure of discounted future as#t flows, related to the above oil and gas reseige
calculated in accordance with the requirements a@pid 932 of the Codification. Estimated future cash
inflows from production are computed by applying tt2-months average price for oil and gas to yadr-e
gquantities of estimated net proved reserves. Adjests in this calculation for future price changes
limited to those required by contractual arrangeém existence at the end of each reporting yeature
development and production costs are those estinfiatere expenditures necessary to develop andupeod
year-end estimated proved reserves based on ydacast indices, assuming continuation of year-end
economic conditions. Estimated future income ta&es calculated by applying appropriate year-end
statutory tax rates. These rates reflect allowaaductions and tax credits and are applied to agtidn
future pre-tax net cash flows, less the tax bateslated assets. Discounted future net cash floave been
calculated using a ten percent discount factorc@iating requires a year-by-year estimate of wheauaré
expenditures will be incurred and when reservekheilproduced.
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The information provided in the tables set out beltoes not represent management’s estimate of the
Group’s expected future cash flows or of the valfithe Group’s proved oil and gas reserves. Estimat
proved reserve quantities are imprecise and change time as new information becomes available.
Moreover, probable and possible reserves, which negpme proved in the future, are excluded from the
calculations. The arbitrary valuation, prescribeder Topic 932 of the Codification, requires asstioms

as to the timing and amount of future developmemnt production costs. The calculations should not be

relied upon as an indication of the Group’s futcash flows or of the value of its oil and gas ressr

Total Group’s share
consolidated in equity
International Russia companies companies
As of December 31, 2013
Future cash inflows 62,620 676,195 738,815 22,027
Future production and development costs (38,292)  (461,998) (500,290) (11,947)
Future income tax expenses (3,239) (37,321) (40,560) (2,154)
Future net cash flows 21,089 176,876 197,965 7,926
Discount for estimated timing of cash flows (10%.). (9,669) (105,503) (115,172) (4,196)
Discounted future net cash flows 11,420 71,373 R,7 3,730
Non-controlling share
in discounted future net cash flows - 383 383
Total Group’s share
consolidated in equity
International Russia companies companies
As of December 31, 2012
Future cash inflows 58,747 619,743 678,490 24,279
Future production and development costs (36,468)  (424,260) (460,728) (12,469)
Future income tax expenses (4,156) (34,573) (38,729) (2,592)
Future net cash flows 18,123 160,910 179,033 9,218
Discount for estimated timing of cash flows (10%.). (9,964) (96,015) (105,979) (4,723)
Discounted future net cash flows 8,159 64,895 78,05 4,495
Non-controlling share
in discounted future net cash flows - 397 397
Total Group’s share
consolidated in equity
International Russia companies companies
As of December 31, 2011
Future cash inflows 51,665 616,290 667,955 25,773
Future production and development costs (26,242)  (416,403) (442,645) (12,897)
Future income tax expenses (6,056) (35,768) (41,824) (2,896)
Future net cash flows 19,367 164,119 183,486 9,980
Discount for estimated timing of cash flows (10%.). (10,930) (97,394) (108,324) (5,145)
Discounted future net cash flows 8,437 66,725 75,16 4,835
Non-controlling share
in discounted future net cash flows - 937 937
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VI. Principal sources of changes in the standardizeeasure of discounted future net cash flows

Consolidated companies 2013 2012 2011
Discounted present value as at January 1 73,054 75,162 43,637
Net changes due to purchases and sales of mineakce 1,266 256 39
Sales and transfers of oil and gas produced, natoafuction costs (14,350) (14,215) (13,515)
Net changes in prices and production costs estimate 21,515 (8,480) 69,089
Net changes in mineral extraction taxes (15,355) 627 (32,678)
Extensions and discoveries, less related costs 4,677 3,174 3,492
Previously estimated development cost incurredndyitie period 4,003 7,241 6,182
Revisions of previous quantity estimates 975 377 620
Net change in income taxes (999) 1,337 (7,467)
Other changes (138) (735) 224
Accretion of discount 8,145 8,310 5,539
Discounted present value at December 31 82,793 73,054 75,162
Group’s share in equity companies 2013 2012 2011
Discounted present value as at January 1 4,495 4,835 3,363
Net changes due to purchases and sales of mineaksce (29) - -
Sales and transfers of oil and gas produced, natoafuction costs (1,010) (1,066) (1,203)
Net changes in prices and production costs estimate (487) (101) 3,820
Net changes in mineral extraction taxes 77 7 (1,720)
Extensions and discoveries, less related costs 109 20 8
Previously estimated development cost incurredndypitie period 132 88 66
Revisions of previous quantity estimates (80) 3) 179
Net change in income taxes 200 139 (365)
Other changes (207) 17 267
Accretion of discount 530 573 420
Discounted present value at December 31 3,730 4,495 4,835
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